3-«5—-7)/

INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

PHoowe 57

Form 10-300 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR graTE:
(Rev. 6-72) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE v arass
COUNTY:
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES Randolph

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY DATE

(Type all entries - complete applicable sections)

JAN TBWE

OLD DAVIDSONVILLE STATE HISTORIC MONUMENT

AND/OR HISTORIC:

- Davidsonville

Lawrence

F

Vo ‘
Boundaries as shown on annexed map

STREET ANDO NUMBER: et { Bl N (- Vo

CITY OR TOWN: CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT:
G Y it fe pinei® o4 ¢ Py \ Flrst

ST AITE CODE |COUNTY: CODE
Arkansas Randolph et

02

ACCESSIBLE

CATEGORY
WNERSHIP STATUS
(Check One) SMUNERS TO THE PUBLIC
[C] District [C] Building [0 Public Public Acquisition: [C] Occupied Yes:
X Site [ Structure |1 Private [ In Process 7] Unaccupred | Res'ncted
[] Object [] Both [] Being Considered [T Praastvotion work X] Unrestricted
in progress [0 No

'E_RE§EN T USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

[J Museum [C] Scientific

[] Agricultural [] Government ¥ Park [C] Transportation [[] Comments
[ Commercial [J Industrial [C] Private Residence [] Other (Specify)

[] Educational [J Military [C] Religious

[C] Entertainment

State of Arkansas - Department of Parks and Tourism

STREET AND NUMBER:

Capitol Building

STATE:

Arkansas

CITY OR TOWN:

&

P Iy
\V?

EG|$TRY QF DEEDS, ETC:

Randolph County Courthouse

STREET AND NUMBER:

County Courthouse

COUR

T

CITY OR TOWN:

Pocahontas Arkansas

:31lV.LsS

FALNNOD

TITLE OF SURVEY:
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program

DATE OF SURVEY: 12-11-69 [] Federal State [] County

] Local

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

Arkansas History Commission

STREET AND NUMBER:

300 West Markham

STATE:

Arkansas

CITY OR TOWN:

Little Rock

CODE

05

ot “‘W
3lva b H3EWNN AYLN3

ATINO 3SN SdN 404




(Check One)
[] Excellent (] Good [ Fair [C] Deteriorated [C] Ruins K] Unexposed

CONDITION

(Check One) (Check One)
[X Altered [C] Unaltered [] Moved Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The town of Davidsonville was established on
the Black River within a wedge-shaped area of land
roughly 5 square miles in size formed by the conflu-
ence of Black, @urrent, and Spring -Rivers. The
general topography of this region consists of rolling
hills and numerous smaller tributary streams. The
specific location for the town site was probably
chosen largely because of the presence of a sizable
area of high ground which projects out towards the
river and a pre-existing trail which'made use of a
natural river.crossing.

According to the original town plat, 2 copies
ofi which are still ‘extant, the town:was: laid ‘cutdéin
9 blocks, 3 each way, covering a rectangular area
of 35.1 acres. Eight of these blocks were divided
into 6 lots each. The center block was designated
the Public Square. There was an additional area, the
Town Commons, between the town and Black River.
Assuming that the courthouse (the location of which
is known) was near the center of the Public Square,
this commons area was around 12 acres in size. The
alignment of the town was 48 degrees west of north
with' the southeast side more or less parallel to
BlliegkiRibverss s fir. ‘o

There’ is’some: fiaixrly substantial-evidence that
the courthouse was a two-storey brick structure.
Other  suggested structures were a jail, postioffice,
land office, and mercantile establishments. However,
these may have been contained in private dwellings.
At least 3 persons were authorized to keep tavern in
their"® homes.

Some information about the appearance of the
town has been passed down through time. - The location
of the courthouse (now marked by a large, low mound
of dirt and brick rubble) has apparently always been
well-known. This spot and at least some others were
disturbed by "treasure" hunters before the land was
acquired by the State of Arkansas. A few other places
are still indicative of where: structures once. od,
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7. Desgription Continued:

and at least part of the original street systems can
still be located. Other probably original features
include a well, two cemeteries, and the largest of
the site's numerous oak trees (manyof these last
seem to border on what were once streets).

Approximately 85 percent of the original tewn
site is now contained within 0ld Davidsonville State
Park. - The park has a picnic pavilion, rest roomsi,
camping facilities, and a boat ramp. The remaining
portion of the original site is privately owneds: “This
is mostly pasture land but includes an occupied house
and associated outbuildings.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

A great amount of variation is found in the
historical accounts which have been written about
Davidsonville. Apparently this is the result of
the existence of both a large body of primary source
material, some of it rather obscure, and a sub-
stantial quantity of verbal tradition. It is,
nevertheless, this wealth of information which best
reflects the site's significance to the history of
Arkansas. Furthermore, this same information,
especially as it includes the original survey of
the layout of the town, makes this potentially one
of Arkansas' most important sites for historical
archeological research.

First usage of the land which was to:become:
Davidsonville is indicated to have been during
laté prehistoric’ times;iperhaps’ as. much' as.a:
thousand years ago. By early historic times, this
was part of the hunting territory claimed by the -
Osage Indians. Existing documents suggest a pre-
dominantly French settlement, the Spring River
Settlement, in this general area perhaps as early
as around 1800. The lands purchased for Davidson-
ville in December of 1815 had somewhat earlier
been obtained from 5 persons with French names (this
-ordginal:tract wasi around 250 acres. but all &f it
except the actual town and town commons was sold
In 1818y,

Davidsonville was established as the first
county seat of Lawrence County, which had been

. created. in January 1815. This original Lawrence

County, part of Missouri Territory, was quite large
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Arkansas Archeological Survey November 1972
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University of Arkansas
CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE
Fayetteville Arkansas 05

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the c-iteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:
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8. Significance Continued:

(one estimate is 250 miles east-west by 90 miles
north-south), covering all of present day northern
Arkansas. In its early years the county seat was
also called Lawrence, and this name was sometimes
used interchangeably with Davidsonville. In 1817,
the first post office in what is now Arkansas was
established at Davidsonville. The same claim can
probably be made for the town's federal hardd office
(1820) and courthouse (probably completed by 1818).
In 1819, Lawrence County became a part of Arkansas
Territory and was by now considerably reduced in
size. Davidsonville continued to serve as county
seat until 1829, at which time this function was
transferred to the town of Jackson a few miles west.
Most 1likely this was simply a matter of Jackson
being more strategically located on what had be-
come the main route of the odd Southwest Trail.

In spite of its early imporktance, it 1s doubtfiul
that Davidsonville ever became a large town. Accord-
ing to. a journal written in 1826, it contained only
10 o L5 Heouses.

The history of the site is not clear after 1829,
but apparently the town soon ceased to exist (Law-
rence County itself continued to decrease in size
and in 1835 the Davidsonville area became a part
of the newly formed Randolph County). Afterwards
the land adjacent to the river was used as a steam-
boat stop, and there probably were one or more
warehouses built for this purpose. By late in the
nineteenth century Scott's Ferry was operating here
and continued to be used until 1929 or 1930. 1In
1957, Davidsonville State Park was established.

GPO 921.724
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